
 

NOTICE:  Agenda is subject to change up to 24 hours before scheduled meeting.  If you require special 
assistance in order to attend any of the Town’s public meetings or events, please notify the Town of 

Hayden at (970) 276-3741 at least 48 hours in advance of the scheduled event so the necessary 
arrangements can be made. 

 
 

 
 

AGENDA 
HAYDEN PLANNING COMMISSION 

THURSDAY, JUNE 12th, 2025 
6:00 P.M. 

Join Zoom Meeting 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/89548614591 

Meeting ID: 895 4861 4591 
HAYDEN TOWN HALL – 178 WEST JEFFERSON AVENUE, HAYDEN 

 
REGULAR MEETING 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER, MOMENT OF SILENCE & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  
 
2. ROLL CALL  
 
3. CONSIDERATION OF MINUTES  

Review and Consider Approval of May 8, 2025 Planning Commission Minutes.  
 
5. Kunubu Conditional Use Permit,    

a) Public Hearing: Conditional Use Permit application submitted by Bears Ears Holdings, LLC to operate a 
marijuana establishment to perform extraction and processing to be located at 481 Enterprise Street.   

b) Review and Consideration of a Conditional Use Permit application submitted by Bears Ears Holdings, LLC to 
operate a marijuana establishment to perform extraction and processing to be located at 481 Enterprise Street.   
 

7. STAFF REPORT    
 
8. ADJOURNMENT  

   
   
  

  
  

 
 

   

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/89548614591


 
Regular Meeting                         Hayden Planning Commission                  May 8th , 2025 
 

 
Draft Page 1 of 3 

The regular meeting of the Hayden Planning Commission was called to order by Chair Williams at 6:00 p.m. Also 
in attendance were Commissioner David “Mo” Demorat, Commissioner Ben Robbins, and Alternate Commissioner 
Katie Berning, Hayden Contract Planner with Mesa Planning and Design LLC Ty Johnson, Town Manager Mathew 
Mendisco, and Project Manager Kevin Corona. 
 
Pledge of Allegiance 
 
Approval of the Minutes 
 

Chair Williams  led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
Commissioner DeMorat made a motion to approve the Planning 
Commission meeting minutes from February 27th, 2025, the motion was 
approved unanimously.  
 

Explorist.Life Conditional 
Use Permit, Lot 12 
Northwest Colorado 
Business Park F3 
   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The applicant, Steph Yarbrough, presented the site plan for 631 Wings Way 
and provided an overview of the proposed project and her company, 
Explorist.Life. The facility is proposed to be located in the Northwest 
Colorado Business Park and is intended to serve as the central hub for their 
business operations. 

Steph and Nate Yarbrough, property owners, currently operate out of 
three separate warehouse locations—one on Bridge Lane in Steamboat 
Springs, and two adjacent lots on Marble Court, also in Steamboat. The 
goal of the new facility is to consolidate all operations into a single location 
to increase efficiency. 

Steph noted that their current warehouse operations support five full-time 
employees and two part-time staff, in addition to several remote 
employees. The proposed facility includes six RV pads designed to support 
real-world electrical system installations. These pads will allow RVs to be 
connected to electrical and sewage systems during installations and 
troubleshooting processes. 

Given the nature of their business, most customers are from out of state 
and may stay on-site in their RVs during installation or repair services. 
Explorist.Life also runs a YouTube channel with over 300,000 subscribers, 
where they produce educational content related to electrical installations 
and RV systems. The RV pads will be used for staging these instructional 
videos. 

Additionally, the applicant requested the ability to use the RV pads for 
seasonal workforce housing, limited to a 90-day occupancy period to 
accommodate increased staffing needs during peak seasons. 

Steph addressed traffic and site access concerns, explaining that the 
selected lot at the cul-de-sac location was chosen to help manage their 
regular logistics. Their operations include daily UPS and FedEx deliveries 



 
Regular Meeting                         Hayden Planning Commission                  May 8th , 2025 
 

 
Draft Page 2 of 3 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Public Comments                                   
                                                                  

and one weekly freight delivery. As their business is entirely e-commerce 
based, there will be no in-person retail customers visiting the site. 

The site plan includes ample parking for employees and deliveries, 
dedicated fire access, storm drainage, snow storage, and other necessary 
infrastructure. The building design will feature a modern industrial aesthetic 
to align with neighboring structures in the business park. 

Steph concluded by thanking the Planning Commission for their time and 
consideration and expressed hope that the project aligns with the Town of 
Hayden’s vision for future development. 

Chair Williams opened public comment. There was no public comment at 
this  

 

Roundtable 

 

Commissioner DeMorat asked for clarification regarding whether utility 
hookups would be provided for the proposed RV sites. Tennessee Johnson, 
representing T’s Construction—the contractor for the project—was present 
at the meeting and responded that sewage hookups would be included to 
support troubleshooting and repairs while customers' RVs are being 
serviced. 

Commissioner DeMorat then noted that the current site plan does not 
reflect utility connections. Ty Johnson clarified that the site plan currently 
on file with the Planning Department does not include utilities. He added 
that the site plan would be reviewed concurrently with the building permit 
submittal. 

Town Manager Mathew Mendisco further explained that the inclusion of 
utilities such as electricity and sewage connections is intended to reduce 
the need for generators and to mitigate potential issues, such as spills 
during service. These connections are considered ancillary and are 
intended to provide adequate living conditions for both customers and 
seasonal employees. 

He also clarified that there is a distinction between the civil application 
process and the technical building application, and that these aspects—
including utility infrastructure—will be reviewed by Public Works as part of 
the broader permitting process. 

Commissioner Robbins noted that it appears the appropriate departments 
will be reviewing the utilities and their capacity as part of the permitting 
review. 



 
Regular Meeting                         Hayden Planning Commission                  May 8th , 2025 
 

 
Draft Page 3 of 3 

 
 
Recorded by: 
 

        ___________________________ 
        Kevin Corona  
 
APPROVED THIS   DAY OF   , 2025 
 
 
__________________________________ 
Amy J. Williams, Chair    

Town Manager Mendisco concluded the discussion by expressing 
appreciation for Explorist.Life's investment in the community. He 
commented that the business represents a model for light industrial 
development in Hayden and could help pave the way for similar projects in 
the future. 

 
Motion Chair Williams made a motion of approve and stated the 

 
Findings of fact: 
Motion to approve the Explorist Conditional Use Permit with the findings of 
fact that: 
1. The development application meets the standards of the Town of 
Hayden’s Development Code, is 
consistent with the general goals and intent of the Town of Hayden 
Comprehensive Plan, and preserves the health, safety, and welfare of the 
citizens of the Town of Hayden. 
 
 The decision was approved unanimously. 
 

Staff Reports 
 
 
 
Adjournment 

Town Manager Mendisco provided an update on the Geothermal Utilities 
that are underway as they are now breaking ground. He explained they are 
now doing a single structure geothermal utility system.  
 
The meeting was adjourned at 7PM 
 



 

1 

 

 
Town of Hayden 

 

Planning Commission Agenda Item 

 

MEETING DATE: June 12, 2025 
 

AGENDA ITEM TITLE: Kunubu Conditional Use Permit 

 

AGENDA SECTION: New Business 
 

PRESENTED BY: Tegan Ebbert, Deputy Town Manager 
 

APPLICANT(S): Bears Ears Holdings, LLC 

CAN THIS ITEM BE 

RESCHEDULED: 

Not recommended. 
 

 

ATTACHMENTS: Application Submittal 

  
 

BACKGROUND REVIEW: 

 

Bears Ears Holdings, LLC has submitted an application (Application) for a Conditional Use Permit 

(CUP) under Hayden’s Development Code (HDC).  The application requests the approval of a CUP to 

operate a marijuana establishment. The subject property is located at 481 Enterprise St. If approved, the 

applicant plans to move their existing marijuana facility from 499 Enterprise St. (Units A & B) to the 

building located at 481 Enterprise St. to perform extraction, where they process raw marijuana trim into 

distillate form for Colorado licensed manufacturers. The applicant has been in operation at 499 Enterprise 

St. since 2020.  

 

This proposal is to use the existing building located at 481 Enterprise St. that was erected in 2018. The 

original use the structure on the subject property was as a greenhouse for the production of produce. The 

structure has been vacant for several years.    

 

COMPLIANCE WITH THE TOWN OF HAYDEN DEVELOPMENT CODE 

 

While the HDC contains numerous regulations regarding land use, staff has analyzed the following 

checklist to highlight the regulations directly applicable to this application  and how it meets the standards 

for approval. Interested parties are encouraged to review the HDC to determine if there are other 

regulations that may be applicable to the review of this Application.   



 

2 

 

Chapter 10.16 – Development Review Procedures 

 

Section 10.16.020 – General Procedures and Requirements. 

 

Complies Section Standards 

Yes No  

  10.16.020(3) Step 3: Application Processing 

 

X  10.16.020(3)(a) Determination of Completeness. A development 

application shall be reviewed for completeness by the 

manager within ten business days after receipt  

X  10.16.020(3)(b) Referral to Other Agencies. Development 

applications may be referred to other agencies for 

review and comment. 

 

X  10.16.020(3)(b)(1) Any utility, local improvement or service district or 

ditch company, when applicable. Staff comment: A 

referral was made to Hayden Public Works 

Department, Yampa Valley Electric Association, 

Hayden Police Department, Hayden Building 

Department, Routt County Public Works Department,  

CDOT and West Routt Fire Protection District. No 

comments were received. This standard has been met. 

 

X  10.16.020(4) Step 4: Notice. Notice shall be required for all public 

hearings conducted by the Planning Commission and 

Council. Staff comment: All public notice 

requirements have been completed. Therefore, this 

standard is met. 

 

X  10.16.020(5) Step 5: Public Hearings. The Manager shall schedule 

a public hearing date before the Planning Commission 

and/or Council after a complete application has been 

received, Town staff has completed Town staff review, 

and referral agencies have had an opportunity to 

provide comments. Staff comment: The public hearing 

has been scheduled with the Planning Commission on 

June 12, 2025 and Town Council on June 17, 2025; 

therefore, this standard has been met.  

 

 

  10.16.020(6) Step 6: Review and Decision 

 

X  10.16.020(6)(c) Findings. The reviewing authority shall adopt written 

findings which document that a recommendation or 

decision is based upon a determination of whether the 

development application complies with the applicable 

review criteria. The written findings shall state the 

conditions or mitigation. Staff comment: Recommended 

findings of fact are included below for the Town 

Council’s consideration. 

 

 



 

3 

 

Section 10.16.060 – Conditional Use. 

In order to provide flexibility and to help diversify uses within a zoning district, specified uses are permitted 

in certain districts subject to the granting of a conditional use permit. Specific conditional uses for each 

zone district are listed in the Uses by Zoning District Table. Because of their unusual or special 

characteristics, conditional uses require review and evaluation so that they may be located properly with 

respect to their effects on surrounding properties.  

 

Complies Section Standards 

Yes No  

  10.16.060(2) Review Criteria. The planning commission and Council 

shall use the following review criteria as the basis for 

recommendations and decisions on applications for 

conditional uses Staff comment: The CUP is reviewed 
against the CUP review criteria, which are reviewed 

below.    

 

✓   10.16.060(2)(a) The proposed conditional use is consistent with the 

master plan and all applicable provisions of this 

Development Code and applicable state and federal 

regulations Staff Comment: The subject property is 

zoned Light Industrial (I-1). A marijuana establishment 

is conditional use in the I-1 zone district. The future land 

use designation for the subject property is 

Industrial/Business/Light Industrial, and the proposed 

use of marijuana facility is supported by the future land 

use designation.  

 

The project furthers the goals and policies of the master 
plan, and more specifically conforms to the following: 

 

 

Action RE.FE1.3:Provide an efficient review and 

approvals process that creates a supportive business 

environment 

 

Action RE.ED3.1:Retain and expand upon regionally-

serving commercial, industrial and service uses 

 

Action RE.ED3.5:Support efforts that expand the area’s 

commercial base, growing Town revenues, and 

providing essential services for residents, while also 

reducing spending beyond the market 

 

Action RE.ED1.3:Prioritize investment and reinvestment 

in vacant and underutilized parcels within the municipal 

boundaries infrastructure is available, before growing 

beyond the existing Town boundaries 

 

 

 

 

 



 

4 

 

✓   10.16.060(2)(b) The proposed conditional use is consistent with the 

purpose and intent of the zoning district in which it is 

located and any applicable use-specific standards in 

the Development Code Staff Comment: The subject 

property is zoned Light Industrial (I-1). Marijuana 

establishments are a conditional use in the I-1 zone 

district. There are no use specific standards for 

marijuana establishments. Therefore, this standard is 

met.  

  

✓   10.16.060(2)(c) The proposed conditional use is compatible with 

adjacent uses in terms of scale, site design and 

operating characteristics. Staff Comment: The 

proposed use of a marijuana establishment is compatible 

with adjacent uses. All neighboring properties are zoned 

I-1 and thus used in a manner that is consistent with Light 

Industrial zoning. Some neighboring properties include 

warehouse uses and the Valley View live work 

condominiums.  Currently, Kunubu operates its existing 

facility at 499 Enterprise St., so this is a very minor 

change in that the same operation will just be moving two 

properties over, if approved. Therefore, this standard is 

met. 

 

✓   10.16.060(2)(d) The proposed conditional use will not substantially 

alter the basic character of the district in which it is 

in or jeopardize the development or redevelopment 

potential of the district. Staff Comment: The project will 

not alter the character of the area. The proposed use is 

already in operation two lots down, and other uses in the 

area are all consistent with the light industrial zone 

district. Therefore, this standard is met.        
 

✓   10.16.060(2)(e) The proposed conditional use will result in efficient 

on- and off-site traffic circulation which will not have 

a significant adverse impact on the adjacent uses or 

result in hazardous conditions for pedestrians or 

vehicles in or adjacent to the site Staff Comment: The 

proposed use will utilize and existing building on the site 

that has an existing driveway access. The site has 

adequate parking and maneuvering space for vehicles,  

and will result in efficient circulation of traffic both on 

and off the site. Therefore, this standard is met.  

 

✓   10.16.060(2)(f) Any significant adverse impacts (including but not 

limited to hours of operation, traffic generation, 

lighting, noise, odor, dust and other external impacts) 

anticipated to result from the conditional use will be 

mitigated or offset to the maximum extent 

practicable. Staff Comment: The applicant has indicated 

that all work will take place indoors. Dust will be 

managed through an enclosed dust collection system and 

no outdoor storage or production will take place. The 



 

5 

 

business will run HVAC systems that are rated for 

airflow at C1/D1 levels and will have carbon and hepa 

filter systems, which complies with State of Colorado and 

MED regulations. Noise will be mitigated by locating 

equipment away from adjacent property lines and 

exterior HVAC units will be screened with acoustic 

fencing. All solvents, isopropyl alcohol (for cleaning) 

and glycol (used as coolant in machines), on site will be 

stored in accordance with fire code and placed in 

certified fire storage cabinets. Therefore, this standard is 

met. 

 

✓   10.16.060(2)(g) Facilities and services (including sewage and waste 

disposal, water, gas, electricity, police and fire 

protection and roads and transportation, as 

applicable) will be available to serve the subject 

property while maintaining adequate levels of service 

for existing development. Staff Comment: The project 

will be served by all required utilities and emergency 

service providers. Therefore, this standard is met.  

 

✓   10.16.060(2)(h) Adequate assurances of continuing maintenance have 

been provided; and Staff Comment: The applicant has 

indicated that they will regularly maintain and clean the 

site. Any existing site vegetation/landscaping will be 

maintained in accordance with Town standards, trash 

will be removed regularly, and exterior lighting will be 

checked regularly to ensure it remains in working order. 

Therefore, this standard is met. 

 

✓   10.16.060(2)(i) The proposed conditional use meets all the applicable 

standards in chapter 10.24, development standards 

Staff Comment: The application meets all applicable 

standards of the Development Code. The proposal is for 

the use of an existing facility, no new buildings are being 

proposed at this time. Therefore, this standard is met.  

 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 

 

Move to approve the Kunubu Conditional Use Permit with the findings of fact that: 

 

1. The proposed conditional use is consistent with the master plan and all applicable provisions of this 

Development Code and applicable state and federal regulations and preserves the health, safety, 

and welfare of the citizens of the Town of Hayden. 

2. The proposed conditional use is consistent with the purpose and intent of the zoning district in 

which it is located and any applicable use-specific standards in the Development Code. 

3. The proposed conditional use is compatible with adjacent uses in terms of scale, site design and 

operating characteristics.  

4. The proposed conditional use will not substantially alter the basic character of the district in which 

it is in or jeopardize the development or redevelopment potential of the district .  

https://library.municode.com/co/hayden/codes/municipal_code?nodeId=TIT10DECO_CH10.24DEDIST


 

6 

 

5. The proposed conditional use will result in efficient on- and off-site traffic circulation which will 

not have a significant adverse impact on the adjacent uses or result in hazardous conditions for 

pedestrians or vehicles in or adjacent to the site.  

6. Any significant adverse impacts (including but not limited to hours of operation, traffic generation, 

lighting, noise, odor, dust and other external impacts) anticipated to result from the conditional use 

will be mitigated or offset to the maximum extent practicable.  

7. Facilities and services (including sewage and waste disposal, water, gas, electricity, police and fire 

protection and roads and transportation, as applicable) will be available to serve the subject property 

while maintaining adequate levels of service for existing development.  

8. Adequate assurances of continuing maintenance have been provided.  

9. The proposed conditional use meets all the applicable standards in chapter 10.24, development 

standards. 

 

Subject to the following conditions of approval: 

 

1. The conditional use permit shall be authorized and approved by a resolution approved by 

the Town Council. 

2. The operation shall comply with all applicable local and state laws, regulations and 

requirements at all times. 

 

 

MANAGER’S RECOMMENDATION/COMMENTS: 

 

I concur with this recommendation. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

7 

 

 

 

 

SITE VICINITY MAP 

 











































Account Number R8169933 Certificate Number 32953

Parcel 260200009 Order Number N/A

Assessed To Vendor ID 4

CHAPFREY LLP
C/O:NANCY JEFFREY
PO BOX 775405
STEAMBOAT SPRINGS, CO 80477

LAND TITLE
255 ANGLERS DRIVE, SUITE B
STEAMBOAT SPRINGS, CO 80477

Legal Description Situs Address

LOT 9 VALLEY VIEW BUSINESS PARK

Year Tax Interest Fees Payments Balance

Tax Charge

2024 $16,039.56 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $16,039.56

Total Tax Charge $16,039.56

Special Assessment: TOWN - HAYDEN ASSESSMENT

2024 $328.10 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $328.10

Total Special Assessment: TOWN - HAYDEN ASSESSMENT $328.10

Lien

2023  Lien: 2024-04523 $16,922.11 $846.11 $0.00 $0.00 $17,768.22

2023 $0.00 $0.00 $7.00 $0.00 $7.00

Total Lien $17,775.22

GRAND TOTAL $34,142.88

Grand Total Due as of 01/29/2025 $34,142.88

TOWN - HAYDEN ASSESSMENT $328.10

Tax Billed at 2024 Rates for Tax Area 35H - *RE1*  TOWN OF HAYDEN - (Hayden Proper, includes Yampa Vlly Reg Airport)

Authority Mill Levy Amount

ROUTT COUNTY GENERAL FUND 9.3280000* $1,326.62

ROUTT COUNTY ROAD & BRIDGE 0.4000000 $56.89

ROUTT COUNTY SOCIAL SERVICE 0.4890000 $69.55

ROUTT COUNTY
COMMUNICATIONS

0.8960000 $127.43

ROUTT COUNTY OPEN SPACE FUN 1.5000000 $213.33

ROUTT COUNTY  MUSEUMS 0.3000000 $42.67

ROUTT COUNTY - HORIZONS 1.0000000 $142.22

WEST ROUTT LIBRARY DISTRICT 1.7110000 $243.34

HAYDEN SCHOOL DISTRICT 43.8900000* $6,242.03

TOWN OF HAYDEN - GENERAL 25.0670000 $3,565.03

TOWN OF HAYDEN - BOND 15.4890000 $2,202.84

HAYDEN CEMETERY 0.3710000 $52.76

COLORADO RIVER WATER CONSER 0.5010000 $71.25

UPPER YAMPA WATER
CONSERVAT

1.8200000 $258.84

SOLANDT MEMORIAL HOSPITAL 0.3700000 $52.62

WEST ROUTT FIRE PROTECTION 3.1480000 $447.71

WEST ROUTT FIRE PROTECTION 6.5000000 $924.43

Taxes Billed 2024 112.7800000 $16,039.56

* Credit Levy

Values Actual Assessed

WAREHOUSE/STORA
GE LAND

$90,000 $25,110

WRHS/STORAGE
BLDG

$419,760 $117,110

Total $509,760 $142,220

•Certificate is only valid at time of printing; all totals are subject to change.

•Tax lien redemptions must be paid by cash or certified funds.

•Information regarding special taxing districts and the boundaries of such districts may be on file with the County Assessor.

•This certificate does not include personal property taxes, land or improvements assessed under a separate account number, transfer tax

or misc. tax collected on behalf of other entities, special or local improvement district assessments or mobile homes, unless specifically

mentioned.

Certificate of Taxes Due

Jan 29, 2025 11:03:41 AM Page 1 of 2



I, the undersigned, do hereby certify that the entire amount of taxes due upon the above described parcels of real property and all

outstanding sales for unpaid taxes as shown by the records in my office from which the same may still be redeemed with the amount

required for redemption are as noted herein. In witness whereof, I have hereunto set my hand and seal.

Lane Iacovetto

Routt County Treasurer

522 Lincoln Ave Suite 22

Steamboat Springs, CO 80477

Certificate of Taxes Due

Jan 29, 2025 11:03:41 AM Page 2 of 2



Customer Distribution

Prevent fraud - Please call a member of our closing team for wire transfer
instructions or to initiate a wire transfer. Note that our wiring instructions will
never change.

Order Number: ABS30032939-6 Date: 04/21/2025

Property Address: 481 ENTERPRISE STREET, HAYDEN, CO 81639

For Closing Assistance Closers Assistant For Title Assistance
Amy Norris
255 ANGLERS DRIVE, SUITE B
STEAMBOAT SPRINGS, CO
80477
PO BOX 776309
(970) 761-7076 (Work)
(877) 276-5044 (Work Fax)
anorris@ltgc.com
Contact License: CO274692
Company License: CO44565

Cole Schwendeman
255 ANGLERS DRIVE, SUITE B
STEAMBOAT SPRINGS, CO
80477
PO BOX 776309
(970) 761-7086 (Work)
(866) 360-5892 (Work Fax)
cschwendeman@ltgc.com
Contact License: CO840405
Company License: CO44565

George Rietsch
5975 GREENWOOD PLAZA
BLVD
GREENWOOD VILLAGE, CO
80111
(303) 850-4151 (Work)
grietsch@ltgc.com

Buyer/Borrower
BEARS EARS HOLDINGS, LLC
Attention: JOHN KELLY
P.O. BOX 937
HAYDEN, CO 81639
(970) 761-5186 (Cell)
kunuburandy@gmail.com
john@Kunubu.com
Delivered via: Electronic Mail

Agent for Seller
STEAMBOAT SOTHEBY'S INTERNATIONAL
REALTY
Attention: ALEXANDER LONG
610 MARKETPLACE PLAZA #100
STEAMBOAT SPRINGS, CO 80487
(970) 291-8559 (Work)
(970) 879-5928 (Work Fax)
alexlong@slifersteamboat.com
Delivered via: Electronic Mail

Seller/Owner
CHAPFREY L.L.P.
Attention: Nancy P Jeffrey
481 ENTERPRISE ST
HAYDEN, CO 81639
(970) 819-5454 (Cell)
wz.stu211@gmail.com
Delivered via: Electronic Mail

Lender - New Loan
FREDERICK L. KELLY AND NANCY J. KELLY
45 Village Green Circle
Savannah, GA 31411
(410) 279-3586 (Cell)

mailto:anorris@ltgc.com?subject=Commitment%20-%2030032939
mailto:cschwendeman@ltgc.com?subject=Commitment%20-%2030032939
mailto:grietsch@ltgc.com?subject=Commitment%20-%2030032939


Agent for Buyer
COLDWELL BANKER DISTINCTIVE PROPERTIES
Attention: ALICIA DOOLIN
35 5TH ST UNIT 101
STEAMBOAT SPRINGS, CO 80487
(970) 846-6512 (Cell)
(970) 879-8814 (Work)
(970) 879-0390 (Work Fax)
aliciakdoolin@gmail.com
Delivered via: Electronic Mail



Estimate of Title Fees

Order Number: ABS30032939-6 Date: 04/21/2025

Property Address: 481 ENTERPRISE STREET, HAYDEN, CO 81639

Seller(s): CHAPFREY L.L.P., A COLORADO LIMITED LIABILITY PARTNERSHIP

Buyer(s): BEARS EARS HOLDINGS, LLC, A COLORADO LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY

Thank you for putting your trust in Land Title. Below is the estimate of title fees for the
transaction. The final fees will be collected at closing. Visit ltgc.com to learn more about
Land Title.

   

Estimate of Title Insurance Fees

"ALTA" Owner's Policy 07-30-21 $1,437.00

Deletion of Standard Exception(s) $100.00

"ALTA" Loan Policy 07-30-21 Purchase Loan Rate $300.00

Tax Certificate $27.00

TOTAL $1,864.00

Note: The documents linked in this commitment should be reviewed carefully. These
documents, such as covenants conditions and restrictions, may affect the title, ownership and
use of the property. You may wish to engage legal assistance in order to fully understand and
be aware of the implications of the documents on your property.

Chain of Title Documents:
Routt county recorded 10/31/2017 under reception no. 784627
Routt county recorded 10/23/2017 under reception no. 784372

https://www.ltgc.com/
https://ltgc.settlor.com/recorded_document/download/.eJw1jN0KgCAUg99l115YRqd8GennEFGomAUSvXtWdLft23ZicLuNCRqyKSRBIHEXoEtZkEDggX2cnc2cmqoun8K3ML1zi4nJc2Y5fSy03ddVwHcT_3oezcFhez-oVTUpdd1SAiSa.aAatcA.efiFbSA4jPHqhK7tICqqofZokY4
https://ltgc.settlor.com/recorded_document/download/.eJw1jN0KgCAUg99l115YRqd8GennEFGomAUSvXtWdLft23ZicLuNCRqyKSRBIHEXoEtZkEDggX2cnc2cmkpRmQvfwvTOLSYmz5nl9LHQdl9XAd9N_Ot5NAeH7f2gVtWk1HUDUS8klw.aAatcA.9Mu7u-qBCZT8FL1z65Nj-QsX3Dg


This page is only a part of a 2021 ALTA® Commitment for Title Insurance. This
Commitment is not valid without the Notice; the Commitment to Issue Policy; the
Commitment Conditions; Schedule A; Schedule B, Part I—Requirements; Schedule B, Part
II—Exceptions; and a counter-signature by the Company or its issuing agent that may be in
electronic form.

Copyright 2021 American Land Title Association. All rights reserved.

The use of this Form is restricted to ALTA licensees and ALTA members in good standing
as of the date of use. All other uses are prohibited. Reprinted under license from the
American Land Title Association.

Property Address:

481 ENTERPRISE STREET, HAYDEN, CO 81639

1. Commitment Date:

03/21/2025 at 5:00 P.M.

2. Policy to be Issued and Proposed Insured:

"ALTA" Owner's Policy 07-30-21
Proposed Insured:
BEARS EARS HOLDINGS, LLC, A COLORADO LIMITED
LIABILITY COMPANY

$350,000.00

"ALTA" Loan Policy 07-30-21 Purchase Loan Rate
Proposed Insured:
FREDERICK L. KELLY AND NANCY J. KELLY

$350,000.00

3. The estate or interest in the land described or referred to in this Commitment and covered herein is:

FEE SIMPLE

4. The Title is, at the Commitment Date, vested in:

CHAPFREY L.L.P., A COLORADO LIMITED LIABILITY PARTNERSHIP

5. The Land is described as follows:

LOT 9, 
VALLEY VIEW BUSINESS PARK, 
ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF RECORDED JANUARY 5, 2006 AT RECEPTION NO. 631598 
AND FILED AT FILE NO. 13572, 
COUNTY OF ROUTT, STATE OF COLORADO. 

ALTA COMMITMENT

Old Republic National Title Insurance Company

Schedule A

Order Number:ABS30032939-6

https://ltgc.settlor.com/recorded_document/download/.eJyrVkrOL80rqVSyUjKwMDQwV9JRqkxNLFKyMjIwMNNRKkpNTi0oyczPA8qbGRuaWloAFWSmxEM0xSfl52fHl1QWpCpZ5ZXm5OgogQRg7ILEdKC4kl9-XqpSLQCEViEA.aAa8NA.QZHMJqqxdZsk3W4x9M_p6HJ2PT4/Routt_2006_631598_None.pdf


ALTA COMMITMENT

Old Republic National Title Insurance Company

Schedule B, Part I

(Requirements)

Order Number: ABS30032939-6

All of the following Requirements must be met:

This proposed Insured must notify the Company in writing of the name of any party not referred to in this
Commitment who will obtain an interest in the Land or who will make a loan on the Land. The Company
may then make additional Requirements or Exceptions.

Pay the agreed amount for the estate or interest to be insured.

Pay the premiums, fees, and charges for the Policy to the Company.

Documents satisfactory to the Company that convey the Title or create the Mortgage to be insured, or
both, must be properly authorized, executed, delivered, and recorded in the Public Records.

1. RELEASE OF DEED OF TRUST DATED OCTOBER 09, 2019 FROM CHAPFREY L.L.P., A COLORADO
LIMITED LIABILITY PARTNERSHIP TO THE PUBLIC TRUSTEE OF ROUTT COUNTY FOR THE USE OF
NORTHWEST LOAN FUND TO SECURE THE SUM OF $79,500.00 RECORDED OCTOBER 31, 2019, UNDER
RECEPTION NO. 804506.

FIRST AMENDMENT IN CONNECTION WITH SAID DEED OF TRUST WAS RECORDED DECEMBER 15,
2023 UNDER RECEPTION NO. 850178.

2. RELEASE OF DEED OF TRUST DATED FEBRUARY 14, 2019 FROM CHAPFREY L.L.P., A COLORADO
LIMITED LIABILITY PARTNERSHIP TO THE PUBLIC TRUSTEE OF ROUTT COUNTY FOR THE USE OF
COLORADO LENDING SOURCE, LTD., A COLORADO NON-PROFIT CORPORATION TO SECURE THE
SUM OF $50,000.00 RECORDED JUNE 25, 2024, UNDER RECEPTION NO. 854018.

3. (THIS ITEM WAS INTENTIONALLY DELETED)

4. (THIS ITEM WAS INTENTIONALLY DELETED)

5. DULY EXECUTED AND ACKNOWLEDGED STATEMENT OF AUTHORITY SETTING FORTH THE NAME OF
CHAPFREY L.L.P. AS A COLORADO LIMITED LIABILITY PARTNERSHIP. THE STATEMENT OF AUTHORITY
MUST STATE UNDER WHICH LAWS THE ENTITY WAS CREATED, THE MAILING ADDRESS OF THE
ENTITY, AND THE NAME AND POSITION OF THE PERSON(S) AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE INSTRUMENTS
CONVEYING, ENCUMBERING, OR OTHERWISE AFFECTING TITLE TO REAL PROPERTY ON BEHALF OF
THE ENTITY AND OTHERWISE COMPLYING WITH THE PROVISIONS OF SECTION 38-30-172, CRS.

NOTE: THE STATEMENT OF AUTHORITY MUST BE RECORDED WITH THE CLERK AND RECORDER.

6. (THIS ITEM WAS INTENTIONALLY DELETED)

7. SPECIAL WARRANTY DEED FROM CHAPFREY L.L.P., A COLORADO LIMITED LIABILITY PARTNERSHIP
TO BEARS EARS HOLDINGS, LLC, A COLORADO LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY CONVEYING SUBJECT
PROPERTY.

NOTE: THE UNEXECUTED PARTNERSHIP AGREEMENT AND UNEXECUTED ASSIGNMENT OF LIMITED
LIABILITY PARTNERSHIP INTEREST FOR CHAPFREY L.L.P., A COLORADO LIMITED LIABILITY
PARTNERSHIP DISCLOSES NANCY JEFFREY AND TODD CHAPMAN, BOTH OF WHOM MUST SIGN, AS
THE PARTNERS AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE LEGAL INSTRUMENTS ON BEHALF OF SAID ENTITY.

8. DEED OF TRUST FROM BEARS EARS HOLDINGS, LLC, A COLORADO LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY TO
THE PUBLIC TRUSTEE OF ROUTT COUNTY FOR THE USE OF FREDERICK L. KELLY AND NANCY J.
KELLY TO SECURE THE SUM OF $350,000.00.

9. (THIS ITEM WAS INTENTIONALLY DELETED)

https://ltgc.settlor.com/recorded_document/download/.eJwly80KgCAQBOB3mbOHNfr1ZaRsiUhURA8SvXsb3YaZb264WENpMKBZ0wSFxmuG6UgvCpkdp3LGIPtM_UCjgHO3_8luMV62tMQwoXqv8BVCBaX14C89L7gGHfQ.aAa8NA.WFZPXP7FT2BgTba-eykIq2mX79c/Routt_2019_804506.pdf
https://ltgc.settlor.com/recorded_document/download/.eJwly0EKgCAUBNC7zNqFGqF4GTH7hCQqoguJ7p7Sbph588DnntqAAdeCKzAMchVGcrkxVPJUWshp7nrnQukJwmn_kz1yvm0bhWBSj5FhFZNOVNxFK70ft9wd9Q.aAa8NA.LWggtttNxDyKRzuCC96SKSgLH4g/Routt_2023_850178.pdf
https://ltgc.settlor.com/recorded_document/download/.eJwly0EKgCAUBNC7zNqFipF4GTH7hCQqoguJ7p7Sbph588DnntqAAdeC72AY5CqM5FIxVPJUWshp7npTXOgJwmn_kz1yvm0bhWBSj5FhFZNOVNxFK70ft5Ad8w.aAa8NA.XCFahINhZ_1GTlq6zD7UrA9K1OY/Routt_2024_854018.pdf


10. DULY EXECUTED AND ACKNOWLEDGED STATEMENT OF AUTHORITY SETTING FORTH THE NAME OF
BEARS EARS HOLDINGS, LLC, A COLORADO LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY AS A LIMITED LIABILITY
COMPANY. THE STATEMENT OF AUTHORITY MUST STATE UNDER WHICH LAWS THE ENTITY WAS
CREATED, THE MAILING ADDRESS OF THE ENTITY, AND THE NAME AND POSITION OF THE
PERSON(S) AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE INSTRUMENTS CONVEYING, ENCUMBERING, OR OTHERWISE
AFFECTING TITLE TO REAL PROPERTY ON BEHALF OF THE ENTITY AND OTHERWISE COMPLYING
WITH THE PROVISIONS OF SECTION 38-30-172, CRS.

NOTE: THE STATEMENT OF AUTHORITY MUST BE RECORDED WITH THE CLERK AND RECORDER.

11. SUBORDINATION AGREEMENT SUBORDINATING THE DEED OF TRUST SHOWN AS ITEM NO. ITEM 20,
B-II HEREIN TO THE DEED OF TRUST SHOWN AS REQ. 8, B-I ABOVE.

NOTE: THE OPERATING AGREEMENT FOR BEARS EARS HOLDINGS, LLC, A COLORADO LIMITED
LIABILITY COMPANY DISCLOSES JOHN L. KELLY AND JENNIFER M. KELLY, AS THE BOARD
MEMBER/MANAGER AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE LEGAL INSTRUMENTS ON BEHALF OF SAID ENTITY.

12. THE COMPANY IS IN POSSESSION OF THE FOLLOWING UNEXECUTED DOCUMENTS: LIMITED
LIABILITY PARTNERSHIP AGREEMENT, CERTIFICATE, ASSIGNMENT OF LIMITED LIABILITY
PARTNERSHIP INTEREST (X2) , AND FIRST AMENDMENT TO LIMITED LIABILITY PARTNERHIP
AGREEMENT. FULLY EXECUTED DOCUMENTS FOR CHAPFREY L.L.P., A COLORADO LIMITED LIABILITY
PARTNERSHIP MUST BE PROVIDED.

REQUIREMENTS TO DELETE THE PRE-PRINTED EXCEPTIONS IN THE OWNER'S POLICY TO BE ISSUED

A. ITEMS 1-3 OF THE PRE-PRINTED EXCEPTIONS WILL BE DELETED.

B. UPON THE APPROVAL OF THE COMPANY AND THE RECEIPT OF A NOTARIZED FINAL LIEN
AFFIDAVIT, ITEM 4 OF THE PRE-PRINTED EXCEPTIONS, WILL BE AMENDED TO READ:

ITEM 4 OF THE PRE-PRINTED EXCEPTIONS IS DELETED AS TO ANY LIENS OR FUTURE LIENS
RESULTING FROM WORK OR MATERIAL FURNISHED AT THE SPECIFIC, DIRECT REQUEST, AND WITH
THE ACTUAL KNOWLEDGE OF CHAPFREY L.L.P., A COLORADO LIMITED LIABILITY PARTNERSHIP.

OLD REPUBLIC NATIONAL TITLE INSURANCE COMPANY SHALL HAVE NO LIABILITY FOR ANY LIENS
ARISING FROM WORK OR MATERIAL FURNISHED AT THE SPECIFIC, DIRECT REQUEST, AND WITH THE
ACTUAL KNOWLEDGE OF BEARS EARS HOLDINGS, LLC, A COLORADO LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY.

C. ITEM 5 OF THE PRE-PRINTED EXCEPTIONS WILL BE DELETED IF LAND TITLE GUARANTEE
COMPANY CONDUCTS THE CLOSING OF THE CONTEMPLATED TRANSACTION(S) AND RECORDS THE
DOCUMENTS IN CONNECTION THEREWITH.

D. UPON PROOF OF PAYMENT OF 2024 TAXES AND ASSESSMENTS, ITEM 6 OF THE PRE-PRINTED
EXCEPTIONS WILL BE AMENDED TO READ:

TAXES AND ASSESSMENTS FOR THE YEAR 2025 AND SUBSEQUENT YEARS.

ALTA COMMITMENT

Old Republic National Title Insurance Company

Schedule B, Part I

(Requirements)

Order Number: ABS30032939-6

All of the following Requirements must be met:



Some historical land records contain Discriminatory Covenants that are illegal and unenforceable by
law. This Commitment and the Policy treat any Discriminatory Covenant in a document referenced in
Schedule B as if each Discriminatory Covenant is redacted, repudiated, removed, and not republished or
recirculated. Only the remaining provisions of the document will be excepted from coverage.

1. Any facts, rights, interests, or claims thereof, not shown by the Public Records but that could be
ascertained by an inspection of the Land or that may be asserted by persons in possession of the Land.

2. Easements, liens or encumbrances, or claims thereof, not shown by the Public Records.

3. Any encroachment, encumbrance, violation, variation, or adverse circumstance affecting the Title that
would be disclosed by an accurate and complete land survey of the Land and not shown by the Public
Records.

4. Any lien, or right to a lien, for services, labor or material heretofore or hereafter furnished, imposed by
law and not shown by the Public Records.

5. Defects, liens, encumbrances, adverse claims or other matters, if any, created, first appearing in the
public records or attaching subsequent to the effective date hereof but prior to the date of the proposed
insured acquires of record for value the estate or interest or mortgage thereon covered by this
Commitment.

6. (a) Taxes or assessments that are not shown as existing liens by the records of any taxing authority that
levies taxes or assessments on real property or by the Public Records; (b) proceedings by a public
agency that may result in taxes or assessments, or notices of such proceedings, whether or not shown
by the records of such agency or by the Public Records.

7. (a) Unpatented mining claims; (b) reservations or exceptions in patents or in Acts authorizing the
issuance thereof; (c) water rights, claims or title to water.

8. EXISTING LEASES AND TENANCIES, IF ANY.

9. RIGHT OF THE PROPRIETOR OF A VEIN OR LODE TO EXTRACT AND REMOVE HIS ORE THEREFROM,
SHOULD THE SAME BE FOUND TO PENETRATE OR INTERSECT THE PREMISES HEREBY GRANTED,
AND A RIGHT OF WAY FOR DITCHES OR CANALS CONSTRUCTED BY THE AUTHORITY OF THE UNITED
STATES, AS RESERVED IN UNITED STATES PATENT RECORDED NOVEMBER 28, 1891 IN BOOK 6 AT
PAGE 391.

10. RESERVATION OF MINERAL RIGHTS AS CONTAINED IN DEED RECORDED DECEMBER 01, 1972 IN
BOOK 369 AT PAGE 459.

11. RESERVATION OF MINERAL RIGHTS AS CONTAINED IN DEED RECORDED SEPTEMBER 21, 1979 IN
BOOK 484 AT PAGE 301.

12. TERMS, CONDITIONS, PROVISIONS, BURDENS AND OBLIGATIONS AS SET FORTH IN RIGHT OF WAY
EASEMENT RECORDED MARCH 07, 1996 UNDER RECEPTION NO. 459878.

13. CONVEYANCE OF MINERAL RIGHTS AS DESCRIBED IN THE DEEDS RECORDED AUGUST 18, 1997 IN
BOOK 736 AT PAGE 527 AND 528.

14. EASEMENTS, NOTES, AND RESTRICTIONS AS SHOWN ON THE RECORDED PLAT OF VALLEY VIEW
BUSINESS PARK RECORDED JANUARY 5, 2006, UNDER RECEPTION NO. 631598

ALTA COMMITMENT

Old Republic National Title Insurance Company

Schedule B, Part II

(Exceptions)

Order Number: ABS30032939-6

https://ltgc.settlor.com/recorded_document/download/.eJw1jEEKgCAUBe_y1i76BKVeRswkJPGL6EKiu2dE2xlmLjhuqXZoTJKmFQLd2wJNUpFA8c7nGjhBpxajQNjNF5iN-TS1Z_-rF4zNMhbZHgNjVoT7AQt4Hw4.aAa8Ng.npiy5EZ4EX8CtxB91-mdUhUXPkI/Routt_1891_6_391.pdf
https://ltgc.settlor.com/recorded_document/download/.eJwly8sKgCAUhOF3mbWL0szLy0gXCUlUxBYSvXsn2s7_zY0tX6l1WAx6HBQYul8q7GgUZ6h-86WFnKhzoWcpCITd_Se35ny61ouHTVeMDN9AVMyGXFkOCpikwfMCcLsfQw.aAa8Ng.MnwC11Tyds6129m8s0mxr5BJT88/Routt_1972_238653_369_459.pdf
https://ltgc.settlor.com/recorded_document/download/.eJw1jEEKgCAUBe_y1i6UhNTLiJmEJH4RXUh094xoO8PMBU89twEDrgRfwTCCqzBCr5qhBh9Ki5Rhck-JIe72C-xGdNo2SvjVC-ZGKjknxR1TYOEC9wNKrh92.aAa8Ng.3RQ7s7GzipOm8Ir_gEwmZbGVehU/Routt_1979_484_301.pdf
https://ltgc.settlor.com/recorded_document/download/.eJwly00KgCAAhNG7zNqFhuXPZcRMQhIV0YVEd89oO9-bGy731AY0qGRUgGB4W6GZUhtB9c6XFnKana9KCjlBOMx_MnvOl2mjeOjUYyT4hkkF-1yx5wxYBMfzAnWCH1A.aAa8Ng.3RpZn7ka5fITmRPtIMjp7KZ0Wdg/Routt_1996_459878_718_274.pdf
https://ltgc.settlor.com/recorded_document/download/.eJwly0EKgCAUhOG7zNpFVvbSy0iZhBQqYguJ7t6LtvN_c8OlK9YGg26WHUGg-aXASK1JoHjncw0pch9nqUgxCJv9T3ZN6bC1ZQ8Tr_MU-AamNEzs8rJzgOoJzwtzWh9H.aAa8Ng.DlBkp0UT-MimDUK1a1nYU9754kg/Routt_1997_481575_736_527.pdf
https://ltgc.settlor.com/recorded_document/download/.eJwly00KgCAYhOG7zNpFVubPZaRMQhKVsIVEd--TtvM-88DlO9UGg0HxQYKh-fWC4VpLhss7X2rIifqsuJALgbDb_2S3nE9bW_Ew6Y6RoQ9E5dRdWQ8KEKPC-wFzlR9J.aAa8Ng.5f5SOwwDfpf4ZOqr4gh6FRmI61U/Routt_1997_481576_736_528.pdf
https://ltgc.settlor.com/recorded_document/download/.eJyrVkrOL80rqVSyUjKwMDQwV9JRqkxNLFKyMjIwMNNRKkpNTi0oyczPA8qbGRuaWloAFWSmxEM0xSfl52fHl1QWpCpZ5ZXm5OgogQRg7ILEdKC4kl9-XqpSLQCEViEA.aAa8Ng.1ch5p9MguDQKQQm4QoisV1PInXQ/Routt_2006_631598_None.pdf


15. RESTRICTIVE COVENANTS, WHICH DO NOT CONTAIN A FORFEITURE OR REVERTER CLAUSE, BUT
OMITTING ANY COVENANTS OR RESTRICTIONS, IF ANY, BASED UPON RACE, COLOR, RELIGION, SEX,
SEXUAL ORIENTATION, FAMILIAL STATUS, MARITAL STATUS, DISABILITY, HANDICAP, NATIONAL
ORIGIN, ANCESTRY, OR SOURCE OF INCOME, AS SET FORTH IN APPLICABLE STATE OR FEDERAL
LAWS, EXCEPT TO THE EXTENT THAT SAID COVENANT OR RESTRICTION IS PERMITTED BY
APPLICABLE LAW, AS CONTAINED IN INSTRUMENT RECORDED JANUARY 05, 2006, UNDER
RECEPTION NO. 631599.

16. TERMS, CONDITIONS, PROVISIONS, BURDENS AND OBLIGATIONS AS SET FORTH IN IMPROVEMENTS
AGREEMENT RECORDED JANUARY 05, 2006 UNDER RECEPTION NO. 631600.

17. TERMS, CONDITIONS, AND PROVISIONS CONTAINED IN REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMENT RECORDED
JANUARY 05, 2006, UNDER RECEPTION NO. 631601.

18. TERMS, CONDITIONS, PROVISIONS, BURDENS, OBLIGATIONS AND EASEMENTS AS SET FORTH AND
GRANTED IN UTILITY EASEMENT RECORDED MAY 15, 2006 UNDER RECEPTION NO. 638178.

19. TERMS, CONDITIONS, AND PROVISIONS CONTAINED IN TRANSFER OF DECLARANT RIGHTS
RECORDED AUGUST 02, 2006, UNDER RECEPTION NO. 642303.

20. (THIS ITEM WAS INTENTIONALLY DELETED)

(THIS ITEM WAS INTENTIONALLY DELETED)

(THIS ITEM WAS INTENTIONALLY DELETED)

21. ANY FACTS, RIGHTS, INTERESTS OR CLAIMS WHICH MAY EXIST OR ARISE BY REASON OF THE
FOLLOWING FACTS SHOWN ON IMPROVEMENT LOCATION CERTIFICATE CERTIFIED FEBRUARY 14,
2025 PREPARED BY EMERALD MOUNTAIN SURVEYS, INC., BY JAMES B. ACKERMAN, JOB #4355-1

SAID DOCUMENT STORED AS OUR IMAGE 72526797

A: THE DRIVE ACCESS ENCROACHES OVER THE NORTHEASTERLY BOUNDARY LINE.

B: ELEC PED ALONG THE SOUTHEASTERLY BOUNDARY IS OUTSIDE THE EASEMENT AREA.

ALTA COMMITMENT

Old Republic National Title Insurance Company

Schedule B, Part II

(Exceptions)

Order Number: ABS30032939-6

https://ltgc.settlor.com/recorded_document/download/.eJyrVkrOL80rqVSyUjKwMDQwV9JRqkxNLFKyMjIwMNNRKkpNTi0oyczPA8qbGRuaWloCFWSmxEM0xSfl52fHl1QWpCpZ5ZXm5OgogQRg7ILEdKh4LQBFLCDo.aAa8Ng.KdXV8oAbEOpUCTZoIG_aWNmDPj4/Routt_2006_631599.pdf
https://ltgc.settlor.com/recorded_document/download/.eJyrVkrOL80rqVSyUjKwMDQwV9JRqkxNLFKyMjIwMNNRKkpNTi0oyczPA8qbGRuaGRgAFWSmxEM0xSfl52fHl1QWpCpZ5ZXm5OgogQRg7ILEdKh4LQBBjyDX.aAa8Ng.8dNDeUIUeyUARFrK1komXz5egNw/Routt_2006_631600.pdf
https://ltgc.settlor.com/recorded_document/download/.eJyrVkrOL80rqVSyUjKwMDQwV9JRqkxNLFKyMjIwMNNRKkpNTi0oyczPA8qbGRuaGRgCFWSmxEM0xSfl52fHl1QWpCpZ5ZXm5OgogQRg7ILEdKh4LQBBxSDY.aAa8Ng.S11xcDNfxkCdjvP979-gbGm6e7M/Routt_2006_631601.pdf
https://ltgc.settlor.com/recorded_document/download/.eJyrVkrOL80rqVSyUjKwMDQwV9JRqkxNLFKyMjIwMNNRKkpNTi0oyczPA8qbGVsYmlsAFWSmxEM0xSfl52fHl1QWpCpZ5ZXm5OgogQRg7ILEdKh4LQBFNyDo.aAa8Ng.P70MUsTQIA7tRQT-Bnp5J1QHdnY/Routt_2006_638178.pdf
https://ltgc.settlor.com/recorded_document/download/.eJyrVkrOL80rqVSyUjKwMDQwV9JRqkxNLFKyMjIwMNNRKkpNTi0oyczPA8qbmRgZGxgDFWSmxEM0xSfl52fHl1QWpCpZ5ZXm5OgogQRg7ILEdKh4LQBB_CDZ.aAa8Ng.xJPkrJfjRgajT9Kl2BGpcM-oDLY/Routt_2006_642303.pdf
https://ltgc.settlor.com/athena/document/eyJpZCI6NzI1MjY3OTd9.aAa8Ng.cpdJzbWo_ONQs6VUeOf-4js2EMo/30032939_SURVEY_27404232.pdf


ALTA Commitment For Title Insurance
issued by Old Republic National Title Insurance Company

NOTICE

IMPORTANT—READ CAREFULLY: THIS COMMITMENT IS AN OFFER TO ISSUE ONE OR MORE TITLE INSURANCE
POLICIES. ALL CLAIMS OR REMEDIES SOUGHT AGAINST THE COMPANY INVOLVING THE CONTENT OF THIS
COMMITMENT OR THE POLICY MUST BE BASED SOLELY IN CONTRACT.

THIS COMMITMENT IS NOT AN ABSTRACT OF TITLE, REPORT OF THE CONDITION OF TITLE, LEGAL OPINION, OPINION
OF TITLE, OR OTHER REPRESENTATION OF THE STATUS OF TITLE. THE PROCEDURES USED BY THE COMPANY TO DETERMINE INSURABILITY OF
THE TITLE, INCLUDING ANY SEARCH AND EXAMINATION, ARE PROPRIETARY TO THE COMPANY, WERE PERFORMED SOLELY FOR THE BENEFIT OF
THE COMPANY, AND CREATE NO EXTRACONTRACTUAL LIABILITY TO ANY PERSON, INCLUDING A PROPOSED INSURED.

THE COMPANY’S OBLIGATION UNDER THIS COMMITMENT IS TO ISSUE A POLICY TO A PROPOSED INSURED IDENTIFIED IN SCHEDULE A IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE TERMS AND PROVISIONS OF THIS COMMITMENT. THE COMPANY HAS NO LIABILITY OR OBLIGATION INVOLVING THE
CONTENT OF THIS COMMITMENT TO ANY OTHER PERSON. .

COMMITMENT TO ISSUE POLICY

Subject to the Notice; Schedule B, Part I—Requirements; Schedule B, Part II—Exceptions; and the Commitment Conditions ,Old Republic National Title Insurance
Company, a Minnesota corporation (the “Company”), commits to issue the Policy according to the terms and provisions of this Commitment. This Commitment is
effective as of the Commitment Date shown in Schedule A for each Policy described in Schedule A, only when the Company has entered in Schedule A both the
specified dollar amount as the Proposed Amount of insurance and the name of the Proposed Insured. If all of the Schedule B, Part I—Requirements have not been
met within 6 months after the Commitment Date, this Commitment terminates and the Company’s liability and obligation end.

COMMITMENT CONDITIONS

1. DEFINITIONS

2. If all of the Schedule B, Part I—Requirements have not been met within the time period specified in the Commitment to Issue Policy, Commitment terminates
and the Company’s liability and obligation end.

3. The Company’s liability and obligation is limited by and this Commitment is not valid without:

4. COMPANY’S RIGHT TO AMEND

The Company may amend this Commitment at any time. If the Company amends this Commitment to add a defect, lien, encumbrance, adverse claim, or
other matter recorded in the Public Records prior to the Commitment Date, any liability of the Company is limited by Commitment Condition 5. The
Company is not liable for any other amendment to this Commitment.

5. LIMITATIONS OF LIABILITY

i. comply with the Schedule B, Part I—Requirements;
ii. eliminate, with the Company’s written consent, any Schedule B, Part II—Exceptions; or
iii. acquire the Title or create the Mortgage covered by this Commitment.

“Discriminatory Covenant”: Any covenant, condition, restriction, or limitation that is unenforceable under applicable law because it illegally
discriminates against a class of individuals based on personal characteristics such as race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity,
familial status, disability, national origin, or other legally protected class.

(a)

“Knowledge” or “Known”: Actual knowledge or actual notice, but not constructive notice imparted by the Public Records.(b)
“Land”: The land described in item 5 of Schedule A and affixed improvements located on that land that by State law constitute real property. The term
“Land” does not include any property beyond that described in Schedule A, nor any right, title, interest, estate, or easement in any abutting street,
road, aavenue, alley, lane, right-of-way, body of water, or waterway, but does not modify or limit the extent that a right of access to and from the Land
is to be insured by the Policy.

(c)

“Mortgage”: A mortgage, deed of trust, trust deed, security deed, or other real property security instrument, including one evidenced by electronic
means authorized by law.

(d)

  “Policy”: Each contract of title insurance, in a form adopted by the American Land Title Association, issued or to be issued by the Company
pursuant to this Commitment.

(e)

“Proposed Amount of Insurance”: Each dollar amount specified in Schedule A as the Proposed Amount of Insurance of each Policy to be issued
pursuant to this Commitment.

(f)

  “Proposed Insured”: Each person identified in Schedule A as the Proposed Insured of each Policy to be issued pursuant to this Commitment.(g)
“Public Records”: The recording or filing system established under State statutes in effect at the Commitment Date under which a document must be
recorded or filed to impart constructive notice of matters relating to the TItle to a purchaser for value without Knowledge. The term “Public Records”
does not include any other recording or filing system, including any pertaining to environmental remediation or protection, planning, permitting,
zoning, licensing, building, health, public safety, or national security matters.

(h)

“State”: The state or commonwealth of the United States within whose exterior boundaries the Land is located. The term “State” also includes the
District of Columbia, the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico, the U.S. Virgin Islands, and Guam.

(i)

“Title”: The estate or interest in the Land identified in Item 3 of Schedule A.(j)

the Notice;(a)
the Commitment to Issue Policy;(b)
the Commitment Conditions;(c)
Schedule A;(d)
Schedule B, Part I—Requirements; and(e)
Schedule B, Part II—Exceptions; and(f)
a counter-signature by the Company or its issuing agent that may be in electronic form.(g)

The Company’s liability under Commitment Condition 4 is limited to the Proposed Insured’s actual expense incurred in the interval between the
Company’s delivery to the Proposed Insured of the Commitment and the delivery of the amended Commitment, resulting from the Proposed
Insured’s good faith reliance to:

(a)

The Company is not liable under Commitment Condition 5(a) if the Proposed Insured requested the amendment or had Knowledge of the matter and
did not notify the Company about it in writing.

(b)

The Company is only liable under Commitment Condition 4 if the Proposed Insured would not have incurred the expense had the Commitment
included the added matter when the Commitment was first delivered to the Proposed Insured.

(c)

The Company’s liability does not exceed the lesser of the Proposed Insured’s actual expense incurred in good faith and described in Commitment
Condition 5(a) or the Proposed Amount of Insurance.

(d)

The Company is not liable for the content of the Transaction Identification Data, if any.(e)
The Company is not obligated to issue the Policy referred to in this Commitment unless all of the Schedule B, Part I—Requirements have been met
to the satisfaction of the Company.

(f)



6. LIABILITY OF THE COMPANY MUST BE BASED ON THIS COMMITMENT. CHOICE OF LAW AND CHOICE OF FORUM

7. IF THIS COMMITMENT IS ISSUED BY AN ISSUING AGENT

The issuing agent is the Company’s agent only for the limited purpose of issuing title insurance commitments and policies. The issuing agent is not the
Company’s agent for the purpose of providing closing or settlement services.

8. PRO-FORMA POLICY

The Company may provide, at the request of a Proposed Insured, a pro-forma policy illustrating the coverage that the Company may provide. A pro-forma
policy neither reflects the status of Title at the time that the pro-forma policy is delivered to a Proposed Insured, nor is it a commitment to insure.

9. CLAIMS PROCEDURES

This Commitment incorporates by reference all Conditions for making a claim in the Policy to be issued to the Proposed Insured. Commitment Condition 9
does not modify the limitations of liability in Commitment Conditions 5 and 6.

10. CLASS ACTION

ALL CLAIMS AND DISPUTES ARISING OUT OF OR RELATING TO THIS COMMITMENT, INCLUDING ANY SERVICE OR OTHER MATTER IN
CONNECTION WITH ISSUING THIS COMMITMENT, ANY BREACH OF A COMMITMENT PROVISION, OR ANY OTHER CLAIM OR DISPUTE
ARISING OUT OF OR RELATING TO THE TRANSACTION GIVING RISE TO THIS COMMITMENT, MUST BE BROUGHT IN AN INDIVIDUAL
CAPACITY. NO PARTY MAY SERVE AS PLAINTIFF, CLASS MEMBER, OR PARTICIPANT IN ANY CLASS OR REPRESENTATIVE PROCEEDING.
ANY POLICY ISSUED PURSUANT TO THIS COMMITMENT WILL CONTAIN A CLASS ACTION CONDITION.

11. ARBITRATION

The Policy contains an arbitration clause. All arbitrable matters when the Proposed Amount of insurance is $2,000,000 or less may be arbitrated at the
election of either the Company or the Proposed Insured as the exclusive remedy of the parties. A Proposed Insured may review a copy of the arbitration
rules at http://www.alta.org/arbitration

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Old Republic National Title Insurance Company has caused its corporate name and seal to be affixed by its duly authorized officers on
the date shown in Schedule A to be valid when countersigned by a validating officer or other authorized signatory.

Issued by:
Land Title Guarantee Company
3033 East First Avenue Suite 600 
Denver, Colorado 80206
303-321-1880

Craig B. Rants, Senior Vice President

This page is only a part of a 2021 ALTA® Commitment for Title Insurance issued by Old Republic National Title Insurance Company. This Commitment is not
valid without the Notice; the Commitment to Issue Policy; the Commitment Conditions; Schedule A; Schedule B, Part I—Requirements; and Schedule B, Part II
—Exceptions; and a counter-signature by the Company or its issuing agent that may be in electronic form.  

Copyright 2021 American Land Title Association. All rights reserved.

The use of this Form (or any derivative thereof) is restricted to ALTA licensees and ALTA members in good standing as of the date of use. All other uses are
prohibited. Reprinted under license from the American Land Title Association.

The Company’s liability is further limited by the terms and provisions of the Policy to be issued to the Proposed Insured.(g)

Only a Proposed Insured identified in Schedule A, and no other person, may make a claim under this Commitment.(a)
Any claim must be based in contract under the State law of the State where the Land is located and is restricted to the terms and provisions of this
Commitment. Any litigation or other proceeding brought by the Proposed Insured against the Company must be filed only in a State or federal court
having jurisdiction

(b)

This Commitment, as last revised, is the exclusive and entire agreement between the parties with respect to the subject matter of this Commitment
and supersedes all prior commitment negotiations, representations, and proposals of any kind, whether written or oral, express or implied, relating to
the subject matter of this Commitment.

(c)

The deletion or modification of any Schedule B, Part II—Exception does not constitute an agreement or obligation to provide coverage beyond the
terms and provisions of this Commitment or the Policy.

(d)

Any amendment or endorsement to this Commitment must be in writing and authenticated by a person authorized by the Company.(e)
When the Policy is issued, all liability and obligation under this Commitment will end and the Company’s only liability will be under the Policy.(f)



Land Title Guarantee Company
Disclosure Statements

Note: Pursuant to CRS 10-11-122, notice is hereby given that:

Note: Effective September 1, 1997, CRS 30-10-406 requires that all documents received for recording or filing in the
clerk and recorder's office shall contain a top margin of at least one inch and a left, right and bottom margin of at least
one half of an inch. The clerk and recorder may refuse to record or file any document that does not conform, except that,
the requirement for the top margin shall not apply to documents using forms on which space is provided for recording or
filing information at the top margin of the document.

Note: Colorado Division of Insurance Regulations 8-1-2 requires that "Every title entity shall be responsible for all matters
which appear of record prior to the time of recording whenever the title entity conducts the closing and is responsible for
recording or filing of legal documents resulting from the transaction which was closed". Provided that Land Title
Guarantee Company conducts the closing of the insured transaction and is responsible for recording the legal documents
from the transaction, exception number 5 will not appear on the Owner's Title Policy and the Lenders Policy when issued.

Note: Affirmative mechanic's lien protection for the Owner may be available (typically by deletion of Exception no. 4 of
Schedule B, Section 2 of the Commitment from the Owner's Policy to be issued) upon compliance with the following
conditions:

No coverage will be given under any circumstances for labor or material for which the insured has contracted for or
agreed to pay.

Note: Pursuant to CRS 10-11-123, notice is hereby given:

The Subject real property may be located in a special taxing district.(A)
A certificate of taxes due listing each taxing jurisdiction will be obtained from the county treasurer of the county in
which the real property is located or that county treasurer's authorized agent unless the proposed insured provides
written instructions to the contrary. (for an Owner's Policy of Title Insurance pertaining to a sale of residential real
property).

(B)

The information regarding special districts and the boundaries of such districts may be obtained from the Board of
County Commissioners, the County Clerk and Recorder, or the County Assessor.

(C)

The land described in Schedule A of this commitment must be a single family residence which includes a
condominium or townhouse unit.

(A)

No labor or materials have been furnished by mechanics or material-men for purposes of construction on the land
described in Schedule A of this Commitment within the past 6 months.

(B)

The Company must receive an appropriate affidavit indemnifying the Company against un-filed mechanic's and
material-men's liens.

(C)

The Company must receive payment of the appropriate premium.(D)
If there has been construction, improvements or major repairs undertaken on the property to be purchased within
six months prior to the Date of Commitment, the requirements to obtain coverage for unrecorded liens will include:
disclosure of certain construction information; financial information as to the seller, the builder and or the contractor;
payment of the appropriate premium fully executed Indemnity Agreements satisfactory to the company, and, any
additional requirements as may be necessary after an examination of the aforesaid information by the Company.

(E)



This notice applies to owner's policy commitments disclosing that a mineral estate has been severed from the surface
estate, in Schedule B-2.

Note: Pursuant to CRS 10-1-128(6)(a), It is unlawful to knowingly provide false, incomplete, or misleading facts or
information to an insurance company for the purpose of defrauding or attempting to defraud the company. Penalties may
include imprisonment, fines, denial of insurance, and civil damages. Any insurance company or agent of an insurance
company who knowingly provides false, incomplete, or misleading facts or information to a policyholder or claimant for
the purpose of defrauding or attempting to defraud the policyholder or claimant with regard to a settlement or award
payable from insurance proceeds shall be reported to the Colorado Division of Insurance within the Department of
Regulatory Agencies.

Note: Pursuant to Colorado Division of Insurance Regulations 8-1-3, notice is hereby given of the availability of a closing
protection letter for the lender, purchaser, lessee or seller in connection with this transaction.

Note: Pursuant to CRS 24-21-514.5, Colorado notaries may remotely notarize real estate deeds and other documents
using real-time audio-video communication technology. You may choose not to use remote notarization for any
document.

That there is recorded evidence that a mineral estate has been severed, leased, or otherwise conveyed from the
surface estate and that there is substantial likelihood that a third party holds some or all interest in oil, gas, other
minerals, or geothermal energy in the property; and

(A)

That such mineral estate may include the right to enter and use the property without the surface owner's
permission.

(B)



Joint Notice of Privacy Policy of 
Land Title Guarantee Company 

Land Title Insurance Corporation and 
Old Republic National Title Insurancy Company

This Statement is provided to you as a customer of Land Title Guarantee Company as agent for Land Title Insurance
Corporation and Old Republic National Title Insurance Company.

We want you to know that we recognize and respect your privacy expectations and the requirements of federal and state
privacy laws. Information security is one of our highest priorities. We recognize that maintaining your trust and confidence
is the bedrock of our business. We maintain and regularly review internal and external safeguards against unauthorized
access to your non-public personal information ("Personal Information").

In the course of our business, we may collect Personal Information about you from:

applications or other forms we receive from you, including communications sent through TMX, our web-based
transaction management system;
your transactions with, or from the services being performed by us, our affiliates, or others;
a consumer reporting agency, if such information is provided to us in connection with your transaction;

and
The public records maintained by governmental entities that we obtain either directly from those entities, or from
our affiliates and non-affiliates.

Our policies regarding the protection of the confidentiality and security of your Personal Information are as follows:

We restrict access to all Personal Information about you to those employees who need to know that information in
order to provide products and services to you.
We may share your Personal Information with affiliated contractors or service providers who provide services in the
course of our business, but only to the extent necessary for these providers to perform their services and to
provide these services to you as may be required by your transaction.
We maintain physical, electronic and procedural safeguards that comply with federal standards to protect your
Personal Information from unauthorized access or intrusion.
Employees who violate our strict policies and procedures regarding privacy are subject to disciplinary action.
We regularly assess security standards and procedures to protect against unauthorized access to Personal
Information.

WE DO NOT DISCLOSE ANY PERSONAL INFORMATION ABOUT YOU WITH ANYONE FOR ANY PURPOSE THAT
IS NOT STATED ABOVE OR PERMITTED BY LAW.

Consistent with applicable privacy laws, there are some situations in which Personal Information may be disclosed. We
may disclose your Personal Information when you direct or give us permission; when we are required by law to do so, for
example, if we are served a subpoena; or when we suspect fraudulent or criminal activities. We also may disclose your
Personal Information when otherwise permitted by applicable privacy laws such as, for example, when disclosure is
needed to enforce our rights arising out of any agreement, transaction or relationship with you.

Our policy regarding dispute resolution is as follows: Any controversy or claim arising out of or relating to our privacy
policy, or the breach thereof, shall be settled by arbitration in accordance with the rules of the American Arbitration



Association, and judgment upon the award rendered by the arbitrator(s) may be entered in any court having jurisdiction
thereof.


	6-12-2025 PC agenda only_PDF.pdf
	THURSDAY, JUNE 12th, 2025
	6:00 P.M.


